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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" RETORT

TO THE MEMEBERS OF NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2023, anc
its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the

consolidated satatement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the
Act (5As). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its
associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI and the relevant provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of the

reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements and on other financial information of the

subsidiary, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

First time adoption of Ind AS framework
Refer note 3(a) for significant accounting

policies and note 63 for reconciliation.

As disclosed in note 3(a) to the financial
statements, the Group has adopted the Indian
Accounting Standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
(Indian
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) (‘Ind AS")
with effect from April 1, 2022 (April 1, 2021

with the Companies Accounting

being the transition date) and prepared the
first set of financial statements under Ind AS
framewark in the current year.

For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2022, the Group prepared its
financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (“previous GAAT'),

This change in the financial reporting
framework required an end-to-end evaluation
of the potential impact on each component of
the financial involved

statement which

significant efforts.

Our procedures in respect of the first time

adoption of Ind AS framework included, but were

not limited to, the following;

=

Design/controls
Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over management's evaluation of transition
date choices and exemptions availed in line
with the principles under Ind AS 101.
Substantive tests
s Dvaluated the implementation of
exemptions availed by the Group in
accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS 101).
e [Evaluated the accounting policies adopted
by the Group on transition to Ind AS and
and the

assessed its appropriateness

requirements of relevant accounting

standards under the Ind AS framework.
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Sr. No

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

This process also required the management to
apply significant judgements to identify and
elect appropriate accounting policies suitable
for various transactions and balances relating
to the operations of the Group including
electing of available options for transition of
balances as at the transition date from the
previous GAAP to the new GAAP.
Further, the first time preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements involved preparation
and presentation of additional notes and
disclosures as required by the Ind AS
framework as compared to the previous GAAP
in addition to Note 62 to the financial
statements setting forth the reconciliation of
balances from previous GAATP to the new
GAADP as at the transition date, and the impact
of restatement on the results of the
comparative period due to such transition. The
areas where there were a significant impact on
account of first time adoption involved the
following standards amongst others:

a) Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments — Fair

valuation of investments
b) Ind AS5116, Leases
¢) Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments -
Disclosures

Considering the significance of the event in the
current year to the financial statements, the
complexities and efforts involved, this matter
has been identified as a key audit malter for

the current year audit.

*» Assessed areas of significant estimates
and management judgment in line with

principles under Ind AS,
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investments carried at fair value
Refer note 3(n) for significant accounting
policies and note 9 and note 54 for financial
disclosures.

As at March 31, 2023, the Group held
imvestments amounting to Rs. 286,01 crores
which represent 22.00% of the total assets of
the Group as at March 31, 2023.

The investments which are valued using Level
3 inputs comprise 66.81% of the total
investments of the Group as at March 31, 2023,
The aforesaid investment represents
investment in unquoted equity instruments
which are not traded in the market. These
investments are fair valued using Level 2 and 3
inputs.

The fair valuation of these investmenls is
determined by management using the intrinsic
value method. The process of computation of
fair valuation of investments include use of
unobservable inputs and management
judgements and estimates which are complex.
investments was

The valuation of these

considered to be one of the areas which
required significant auditor attention and was
one of the matters of most significance in the
consolidated financial sktatements due to the
materiality of total value of investments to the
consolidated financial statements and the
complexity involved in the valuation of these

investments,

Our audit procedures in relation to valuation of

investments included, but were not limited to, the

following:

= Design/Controls:

Obtained a detailed understanding of the
management’s process and controls for
determining the fair valuation of these
investments. The understanding was
obtained by performance of walkthroughs
which included inspection of documents
produced by the Group and discussion
with those involved in the process of
valuation;

Evaluated the design and the operational
effectiveness of relevant key controls over
the valuation process, including the
Group’s review and approval of the
estimates and assumptions used for the
valuation including key authorization and

data input controls;
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Sr. No

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

= For these investmenlts, critically evaluated
the valuation assessment and resulting
conclusions by the Company in order to
determine the appropriateness of the
valuations by performing reasonableness
tests and evaluating sensitivity analysis
for the key inputs and assumptions

e Ensured the appropriateness of the
carrying value of these investments in the
financial statements and the gain or loss
recognised in the financial statements as a
result of such fair valuation; and

e Ensured the appropriateness of the
disclosures in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards

e Obtained written representations from the
management and those charged with
governance  whether  they  believe
significant assumptions used in valuation

of the investments are reasonable.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to note 7 and note 16 to the consolidated financial statements where the group has

disclosed the ageing schedule of trade receivables and trade payables respectively as per the format

prescribed in Division 111 of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, The said information disclosed in the

ageing schedule is inaccurate to the extent it relates to trade receivables and trade payables which are

outstanding for more than 1 year from the balance sheet date. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this

matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon

MUMBA}

63,
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Responsibilities of Management for Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including the other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its
associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective board of directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give.a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of presentation of the consolidated financial statements

by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i)

iii)

iv)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
tesponsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate internal financial

controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a
going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern,
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v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors and
whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain salely responsible for our

audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance of the Holding Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of total assets of Rs. 208.24 lakhs as
at March 31, 2023, Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 113.95 lakhs, Group’s share of total net profit
after tax of Rs. 59.24 lakhs and Group's share of net cash inflow of Rs. 37.52 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 1 subsidiary
company, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements and auditor’s report have been furnished
to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary company and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3) of section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary company, is

based solely on the reports of other auditors.
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]

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on

the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

We draw your attention to Note No. 11 of the consolidated financial statements where pursuant to
the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 40, “Investment Property”, the group has not disclosed the fair
values of the investment properties held by the company as on March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021. Qur

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The comparative consolidated financial statements of the Group as stated in the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022, were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statement on July 28, 2022. Accordingly, we do not express

any opinion on the figures reported in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit and on the

consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements of the subsidiary

company, as noted in ‘other matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of

the other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiary as noted in the ‘other matter’

paragraph, we report that:

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financial statements.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consalidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those

books and the reports of the other auditors.




V. B. Goel & Co

Chartered Accountants

g)

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of subsidiary company and its associate companies incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group's companies and its associates is disqualified as on

March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate companies and the operating

elfectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B'.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries, the Holding Company, Subsidiary Company
and Associate Companies are private companies and therefore reporting under section 197(16) is

not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the

report of the other auditors on separate financial statements:

i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
consolidated financial statements as referred to in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements;

if) The Group and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

[*
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iii)

There are no amounts during the year which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Group and its associate companies incorporated in

India.

(a)

The respective managements of the Holding Company, associate and subsidiary whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries or associate to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company, associate and subsidiary whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiary from any person
or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under subclause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company on preference shares during the year in

respect of the same declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the

Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend on preference
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shares for the year which is subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the
extent it applies to declaration of dividend. Further, dividend has not been proposed on
equity shares for the year.

vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Group with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the

financial year ended March 31, 2023,

FOR V. B. GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 115906 W
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(Vikas Goel)
Partner
Place : Mumbai Membership No. : 39287
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'ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our

report of even date

According to information and explanations given to us, out of the companies incorporated in India,

following companies are also included in consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in

their reports under Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“"CARO”) which have been reproduced as per

the requirement of the Guidance Note on CARO:

al Holding Clause
Nc; Name of the entities CIN Company/Subsidiary number of
: /Associate CARO Report

1. | Nirmal Bang BSecurities | U99999MH1997PTC110659 Holding Company 3 (vii)
Private Limited

2. | Nirmal Bang Equities | U67120MH1995PTC086575 | Subsidiary Company 3 (vii)
Private Limited

3. | Nirmal Bang Equities | U67120MH1995PTC086575 |  Subsidiary Company 3 (xvii)
Private Limited

4. | Nirmal Bang Insurance | U66030MH2001PTC133638 | Subsidiary Company 3 (xvii)
Broking Private Limited

5. Mindset Securities | U72900MH2000PTC127287 Associate Company 3 (iif) (a)
Private Limited

6. Mindset Securities | U72900MH2000PTC127287 Associale Company 3 (iii) (b)
Private Limited

7. Mindset Securities | U72900MH2000PTC127287 Associate Company 3 (iii) (¢)
Private Limited

8. Mindset Securities | U72900MH2000PTC127287 Associate Company 3 (iv)
Private Limited

9. | Mindset Securities | U72900MH2000PTC127287 Associate Company 3 (xvii)
Private Limited

Place : Mumbai
Date : 2005k 022

FOR V. B. GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg, No. 115906 W

S/(Vikas Goel)

Partner

Membership No. : 39287

UDIN 2203283 3gTgIcses3
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and its associates for the
year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies incorporated in

India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in term of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevenlion or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors, as referred to in Other Matters paragraph, the Holding Company,
its subsidiary company and its associate companies have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued

by the ICATL

Other Matters

Our Report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to separate financial
statements of subsidiary company is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of the subsidiary

com pany.

FOR V. B. GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 115906 W

(Vikas Goel)

Partner

Place : Mumbai Membership No. : 39287 ‘
Date : 30l 05) 2023 UDIN ;203039299 B4 TR IC 5055



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSQLIDATED BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARCH 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless othervise stated)

Particulars Naote | Asat March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022 | As at April 01, 2021
I. ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash andd Cash Equivalents 5 441412 25,H28.83 21,933.83
(b) Bank Balance othan than (a) above 6 70,671.67 55,845.30 37,086,49
(c) Receivables
Trade Receivables 7 16,292.24 2262174 16,747.69
{d) Loans 8 4,948.68 4,092.42 4,528.07
{e) lnvesimenls 9 28,601,17 20,270.71 2319443
(f) Oiher financial assets 10 1,354.24 1,254.78 1,255.73
() Securliies held as inventories 11 1,014.47 1,276.43 B8.206
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(b) Current Tax Assel 12 142,78 276.31 208.19
() Investment Proporly 13 . 145.59 363
(el Property, Plant and Equipment 14 1,B36.95 2,234 88 2,628.54
(e) Other non-financial assets 15 533.59 56188 571.30
TOTAL ASSETS 1,30,009.91 1,34,408.89 1,08,577.15
IL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financtal Liabilities
(a) Pavables
Trade Pavables 16
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
wilerprises 17.28 7.25 35.99
(i) total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro
enlerprises and small enlerprises 1,324.97 151512 1,281.91
() Delt Securities 17 2,500.00 . -
(¢} Borrowlings (Other than Debt Securities) 18 - Bd.6Y 11,871.40
{ch) Deposits 19 1,146.75 1,258.30 1,158.16
{o} Subordinated liabilies 20 5,450.00 5,450.00 100.00
{f) Other Financial liabilities 2] 67,435.90 77.296.22 5497410
{2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current lax liabilities (Net) 22 22243 263.61 225,78
() Provisions 23 426.18 449.69 437,70
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Met) 24 8a.01 206.14 21246
(d) Other non-financial Liabilities 25 316,22 454.53 596.06
(3) Equity
(a) Equily Share Capital 20 493.11 493,11 49311
(11} Other Egquity 27 50,585.70 46,92R.29 37, 189,89
(c) Non Controlling, Interest 28 X3o 1.94 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,30,009,91 1,34,408.89 1,08,577.15
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See accomipanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All mmownts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertvise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS NOTE 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Revenue from operations
(a) Interest Income 30 9,272.93 8,134.20
(b) Dividend Income 31 8.38 4.50
(c) Fees and commission income 32
Brokerage and fees income 22,898.16 25,872.87
Other commission income 125.12 2544
(cl) Net gain on fair value changes 33 - 251.68
(2) Other Operaling income 34 227.06 224.73
(I) Total Revenue from Operations 32,534.64 34,513.42
(IT) Other Income 35 38.12 44.50
(I1I) Tatal Income (I+11) 32,572.76 34,557.92
Expenses:
(a) Finance cost 36 2,319.62 1,960,75
(b) Fees and commission expense 37 10,598.22 12,012.92
(¢) Impairment on [inancial instruments 38 105.53 (44.07)
(c) Net loss on fair value changes 39 12546 -
(d) Employee Benefit expense 40 9,192.26 8,736.66
(e) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 14 937.44 883.92
(1) Others expenses 41 4,135.11 3,528.82
(TV) Total Expense 27,413.64 27,079.01
(V) Profit before Tax (III-IV) 5159.12 7,478.90
(VI) Tax Expense
(a) Current tax 1,544.66 1,989.34
(b) Deferred tax (133.97) (174.19)
{c) Short/(Excess) Provision of earlier years 98.05 (24.53)
Total Tax Expense 1,508.73 1,790.62
(VII) Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI) 3,650.39 5,688.29
(VII1) Share of profit/(loss) of associates (net of taxes) (399.84) 1,958.45
(IX) Profit/(loss) after tax and share in profit of associates 3,250.55 7,646.74
(X) Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Lltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and its
related Lax income effects
(i) Actuarial gain/ (loss) on post retirement benefit plans 69.67 100.58
(i) Fair value gain/ (loss) on Equity Instruments 355.60 2,182.60
(if) Deferred tax impact on above (16.99) (167.87)
Other Comprehensive Income 408.28 2,115.30
—t (XI) Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 3,658.83 9,762:0%
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All minounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
PART R
ARTICULARS NOTE 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
(XII) Net profit/(loss) attributable to :
Owners of parent 3,249.21 7,647.78
Non-controlling interests 1.34 (1.04)
(XI111) Other comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of parent 408.20 2,115.30
Non-controlling interests 0.08 -
(XIV) Total comprehensive income attributable to :
Owners of parent 3,657.41 9,763.09
Non-controlling interests 141 (1.04)
(XV) Earning per Equity share of Rs. 10 46
1) Basic (Rs.) 74.20 197.97
2) Diluted (Rs.) 74.20 197.97
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements  1-64

As per our report of even date attached
For V. B. GOEL & CO

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 115906W

W
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Date: %oloslzoa>

For and on _behalf of the Bas
vivslrose M Do
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Company Secretary
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, wnless otherwise stated)
Partieulars Year ended 31.03,2023 Year ended 31,03,2022

A, Cash Flow from operating activities

Net Profit /(Loss) before lax and excepiional ilenis 5,159.12 747890

Adjusted for :

Deprecintion 037 44 #8392

Dividend income (8.38) (4.50)

Impairmenl on finaneial inslnumenis 83,55 {109.64)

Fair Value changes on investment (5.97) (251.68)

Sundry Balance Written back and Usnclaimed Suspense - 1329

Bacl Debis wrlllen off 21.98 65.58

{Profit)/ Loss on sale of Fixed Assels (3.23) (11.63)

(Profit)/ Loss on sale of Property 59,66 10911

Profil/ {Loss) On Ervor Trade 10,03 5,59

Finance Cost 2,319,62 3,414.69 1,960,75 2,661.79

Operating profil before working capital changes 8,573.81 10,140.69

Adjusted for:

Trade Receivables 5,223.98 (5.843.27)

NMargrin Trading loans (856.27) 435.65

Other Financial Assels (109.48) (5.04)

Securilies held as invenlories 261.96 (1,188.18)

Other Non-Financial Assels 2829 (217.27)

Trade Pavables (180.12) 20447

Fixed Deposits with banks 3,948.00 (28,880.05)

Other Financial Liabilities (10,039.03) 22,354,230

Deposils (111.55) 10014

Other Non-Financal Liabilities (138.31) (142.13)

Provisions 46,16 (926,36) 112,57 {13,009.41)

Cash generaled [rom operation 7,647.46 {2,928.72)

Dirvect taxes refund/ (paic) (1,550.37) (1,995.09)

Net Cash from QOperating activitics 6,097.09 (4,923.87)
B. Cash Flow from Investment Aclivities :

Purchase of Plant. Property and Equipment (553.20) (497 88)

Sale of Fixed Assets 16.93 19.26

Proceeds [rom sale of Invesimenl Property 8593 306,61

Sale/(Purchase) ol Inveshiments (8.368.73) 7310645

Dividend on investment 8.38 4.50

Met Cash used in Investing Activities (8,810.70) 7,148.94
[ 41 al oy Financin

[ssue of preference shares (nel of issue expenses) - 5,350.00

lssue of Non-Covertible Debenlures 2,500,00 i

Inerease/ (Decrease) in borrowings (189.40) (12,187.33)

Interest & Bank Commission paid (2,037.35) {1,G614.00)

Met Cash used in Financing Activities 273.25 {8,451,33)

Mel Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (2,440.37) {6,226.20)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beiginning of the period

Cash in hand 17.94 17.55

Balances in current account 5,790.97 12,017.58

Total Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,808.91 12,035.13

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Cashin hand 2016 17.94

Balances in current account 3,348.40 5,790.%7

Total Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 3,368,560 5,808.91

As per our report of even date altached
For V. B. GOEL & CO

Charlered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 115906W

Wy

Ei"rl MUMBAI

G3

(Vikas Goel)
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2ol bSloce3

For and on bahalf of the Boarg

(Kishore Bang)
Directar
DIN : 00797781

(Mamrata Pai)
Company Secretary
Membership No. A2R477

Place; Aumbai
[ Jate: 3Q1t‘51l‘?"! 3

DIN : 01167387
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated finaucial statements

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Nirmal Bang Securities Private Limited ('the Holding Group') was incorporated on September 12, 1997, The Group is registered with
Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') under the Stock brokers and sub-brokers Regulations, 1992 and is a member of
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mulli Commodity Exchangeof India Ltd. and Nalional
Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited. The Group acts as a stock broker and commodities broker to execute proprietary
trades and also trades on behalf of its clients which include retail customers (including high net worth individuals), mutual funds,
foreign institutional investors, financial institutions and corporate clients. It is registered with Central Depository Services (India)

Limited and National Securities Depository Limited in the capacily of Depository Participant.

2 BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL

A common control business combination, involving entitics or businesses in which all of the combining entities or businesses ave
ultimately controlled by the same parly or partics both before and after the business combination and where the contrel is not
transitory, is accounted for in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’,

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interest method as follows:

= The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.
= Noadjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are made only to harmonize

significant accounting policies.

The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which
- they appeared in Lhe financial statements of the transferor

The difference, if any, belween the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or
other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other
capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and ather

relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements up to and including the year ended March 31, 2022 were prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) under the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), and other generally accepted accounting principles in India (collectively

referred to as “Indian GAAP” or “Previous GAAP”).

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the first financial statements of the Group under Ind AS. The
transition to Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting

Standards”. Accordingly, the impact of transition has been recorded in the opening reserves as at April 1, 2021

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarized as
below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statoments,

excepl where the Group has applied certain accounting policies and exemplions upon transition lo Ind AS.



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Acconnts are integrated part of cousolidated financial statements

(b)

(d)

€)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

Preparation of financial statements

The holding Group is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Group as defined in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. As per the format prescribed under Division 111 of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act,
2013 on Oclober 2018 (as amended), the Group presents the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement
of Changes in Equity in the order of liquidity. A maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities within 12
months after the reporting date and more than 12 months aller the reporting date is presented in note 55 of these financial

statements.
IHistorical cost convention

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles ((GAAP) under the historical cost convention except for financial instruments and plan assets under the
defined benefit plan which are measured at fair value al the end of reporting period as explained in the accounting policies
given below, Further, nominal accounts are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, This is to
comply with the Indian Accounting Standard (to the extent applicable) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent

applicable).
Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS which requires management lo make
estimates, judgments, and assumptons that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and Habilities (including contingent liabilitics) and disclosures as ol the date of [inancial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses for the reparting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period Lo period. Appropriate changes in
estimates are recognized in the period in which the Group becomes aware of Lthe changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Any revisions to accounling estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised
and future periods. The estimates and judgments that have significant impact on carrying amount of assels and liabilities at

each balance sheet date are discussed at note 3 of these financial statements.
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

i} Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements have comprised financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, subsidiaries
are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has conlrol. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
througl its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred Lo the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases,

The acquisilion method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group,

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assels, liabilities, equily, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions wilhin the Group are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary o ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

M T2 o) N



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Acconnts are integrated part of consolidated financial stateiments

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, uitless othertoise stated)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit
ar loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is attributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company and 1o the non-controlling
interest basis Lhe respeclive ownership interest and such balance is attributed even if this results in controlling interest is

having a deficit balance.

The excess of cost ta the Group of its investments in the subsidiaries over its share of equily of the subsidiaries, al the dates on
which the investments in the subsidiaries were made, is recognised as “Goodwill on Consolidation” and is tested for
impairment on annual basis. On the other hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognized as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves &

Surplus’ in the Consolidated Financial Statements,

i) Associates

Associales are all enlities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control, This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, Investments in associates are accounted for using the

equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after initially being recognized at cost.

The difference between the cost of investment in the associate and the share of net assels at the time of acquisition of shares in
the associate is identified in the Consolidated Financial Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be and

adjusted against the carrying amount of investment in the associate,

iii) Equity Accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profil or less, and the Group's share of other
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and

joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-terin receivables, the Group does not recognize Further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entlily.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and ils associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s inlerest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
iv) Changes in ownership interest

The Group Ireats transactions with non-controlling inlerests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership inlerest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relalive inlerests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the

adjustment lo non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognized within equity.

AR .



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Nuotes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

()

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any refained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset, In addition, any amounts pneviuus]_y ret:c'ugni;gcd in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assels or

liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
If the c:wnurship interest in an associate is reduced but joint control or 5ig|1ificant influence is retained, mﬂy a ]_11'L1|_1o]'lit_\|1¢=|[e
share of the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model asset out in Ind AS 115, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, to determine when to recognize revenue and at what amount. Revenue is measured based on
the consideration specified in the contract with a customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when

services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue is not expected ko occur.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised service (i.c. an asset) Lo a customer. An asset is transferred when

(or as) the customer eblains control of thal assel.

When (or as) a performance obligation is satislied, the Group recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price
(excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation.

The Group applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:
= ldentification of contract(s) with customers;
= ldentification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;
*  Determination of transaction price;
= Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

*  Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.
(i) Brokerage Income

It is recognised on trade date basis and is exclusive of goods and service lax and securilies transaclion lax (STT) wherever

applicable.
(ii) Interest income

[nterest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (EIR’). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets Il'lr('rugh the uxpocl‘@ul life of the financial assel or, where H]J]Jl'(‘l}.'bl'i:ll't‘, a shorter puriod, to the
net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal rate of relurn on financial assets afler netling off the fecs
received and cost incurred approximates the effective interest rate method of return for the financial assel. The future

cash flows are estimaled taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

M 15 NP



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(%)

(1)

i

(All amiowts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherweise stated)

(iii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefils associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount

of dividend can be reliably measured. This is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other sharl-termy, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Outstanding bank overdrafts are not considered integral part of the Group’s cash management.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working

condition for its intended use.

Subsequent cosls are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measuted reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assel is derecognized when replaced,
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of profit and Toss during the reporting period in which they are

incurred.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on written down value basis so as to write off the cost of assets over the useful lives as prescribed in
Schedule 11 of the Companies Acl, 2013. The Group provides pro-rata depreciation from the date on which asset is acquired /
put to use, In respect of assets sold, pro-rata depreciation is provided up to the dale on which the asset is sold, Leasehold

improvements are amartised over the term of underlying lease.

Class of asset Estimated useful lives
Building (other than Factory Building) 60 years

Building (others) 3 years

Computers 3 years

Computers - Server and networks 6 years

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 years

General Furniture & Fixture 10 years

Office Equipment’s 5 years

Vehicle (Motor Car) 8 years

Vehicle (Others) 10 years

Leasehold Property Amortised over the term of underlying lease

Intangible Assets
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets are recognized where it is probable that the fulure economic benefit attributable to the assets will [low to the
% are slated al cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization

[
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Notes to Accounts are integraled part of consolidated financial statements

(k)

1

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, untless otherwise stated)

Expenditure incurred on acquisition/development of intangible assets which are not put/ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under intangible assets under development. The Group amaortizes intangible assets on a straight-line basis over the
five years commencing from the month in which the asset is first put to use. The Group provides pro-rata amortization from

the day the asset is put to use,
Y F

Class of asset Estimated useful lives
Compuler Software 5 years
Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are

recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized,
Investment Property

Property that is held for long-terns rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not used by the Group for
business purposes, is clagsified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated wilh the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an

investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized,
Lease
Group as a Lessee

The Group considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. The Group assess

whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using the cumulative catch-up approach. Group has recognized Right of Use
assets as at April 1, 2021 for leases previously classified as operating leases and measured at an amount equal to lease lability
(adjusted for related prepayments/ accruals). The Group has discounted lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate

for measuring the lease liability.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement dale to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use assel or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-ol-use assel for

impairment when such indicators exist,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance
fixed) and variable payments based on an index or rate.

Subsequent o initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasurad

lo reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use assel, or profit and loss if

the right-of-use asset is already reduced Lo zero.
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m)

n)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherivise stated)

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assels using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use assel and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an operating expense in

Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments Lo make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease
liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
excepl the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-
of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount

of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in statement of profit and loss,
Group as a Lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating, lease. Whenever the term of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and lax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past / future cash receipts or payments, The cash

flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information.
Financial Instrument
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date, the date on which the Group
commils to purchase or sell the asset,

Al initial recognition, the Group measures a linancial asset or financial liabilily al its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial lability not at fair value through profit or loss, lransaction costs that are incremental and directly
attributable to the acquisilion or issue of the financial asset or financial lability, such as fees and commissions, Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of profit
and loss. Immedialely after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognized for financial assels

measured at amortized cost,

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognilion, the entity
recognizes the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liabilily (i.c. a Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique thatl uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognized as a

gain or loss.

b} In all other cases, the dilference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amorlized over the life of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be

determined using market observable inputs, or realized through settlement,

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial
liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective interest rate, Any changes are recognized
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(Al mounts i Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value of financial instruments:

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpose. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique,

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurement are observable and the significance of the inpuls to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

a) Level1:quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabililies that the Group can access at
measurement date

b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly or
indirectly; and

¢) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not bas»d on observable market data (unobservable inputs) that the

Gj‘(:up can access at measurement date,

Information about the valuation technigques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilitics are
disclosed in note 52 to these financial statements.

Financial assets
a) Classification and subsequent measurement
The Group has applied Ind AS 109 and classities its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
. Fair value through protfit or loss (FVTPL);
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
% Amaortised cost.
1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

Conlractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates Lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegral

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2) Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of t!quiiy from the issuer’s purﬁpl.-.'cti\ft;!; that is, instruments

that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assels.
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b)

€)

(All amounts in Rs. Lalhs, unless othertoise stated)

Allinvestments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Group may,
on initial recognition, frrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equily instrument is recognised as revenue from operations
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Group has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI, Fair value
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCT are recognized in OCI. Amounts recognised in
OCT are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity

instruments are recognised as ‘Revenue from operations’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Impairment

The Group recognizes impairment allowances using Expected Credit Losses (YECL™) method on all the financial assets

that are not measured at Fair value through profil or loss (FVTPL):
ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

. Financials assets that are not credit impaired - as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within

12 months after the reporting date.

. Financials assets with significant increase in credit risk - as the present value of all cash shortfalls that result from
all possible default events over the expected lile of the financial assets.

. Financials assets that are credil impaired - as the dilference between the gross carrying amount and the present
value of estimated cash flows.

Financial assets are writlen off/fully provided for when there is no reasonable of recovering financial assets in its entirety
or a portion thereof,

However, financial assets that are writlen off could still be subject to enforcement aclivities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Derecognition
A tinancial asset is derecognised only when:

The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows [rom the financial asset or relains the comtractual rights to
receive the cash Hows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation o pay the cash flows o one or more

recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantally all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assel, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Group refains conlrol of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing

invelvement in the financial asset.
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

Financial liabilities
a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial Habilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial

instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs,
b) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss is measured al fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

c) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires,
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amountls and there is an intention Lo settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and musl be enforceable in the normal

course of business and in the event of default, insolvency ar bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each balance sheel date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and
intangible asscts with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable amount of an assel is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amounl of the cash-generaling unit to which the asset belongs. Intangible
assets not yet available lor use, are tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication

thal the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific lo the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 1f
the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the assel (or cash-generating unit) is reduced Lo its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recopnized

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

As at March 31, 2023, none of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assels were considered impaired.
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q) Borrowing Cost

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing cosls are inlerest and other costs
(including exchange differences relaling to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The

difference belween the discounted amount mobilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the EIR,
r) Employee Benefits
a) Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year in which the related services are rendered. The Group recognises the costs of bonus payments when it
has a present obligation to make such payments as a resull of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be

made,
Compensated Absences

The Group does not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves for its employees. Further, as per the policy of the
Group, balance leaves unutilised as at the end of the financial year is not carry forward. Therefore, no provision in this

regards is made in the financial statement.
b) Post-employment obligations
Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution paid/payable to the recognised provident fund and Employee State Insurance Corporation, which is a

defined contribution scheme, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur,
Defined benefit

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the Balance
Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheel dale logether with the
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gain or losses and the past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method, Actuarial
gains and losses comprise experience adjustment and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the
puriod in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained carnings in the

stalement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet,
s)  Foreign Cuarrency Translation
a) Functional and presentation curreney

[tems included in financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency’), The financial statements are presented in Indian

rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency,
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u)

b)

(All antonnts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherivise stated)

Translation and balances

Foreign carrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monelary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized
in profit or loss.

Earning per shares

a) Basic Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total comprehensive income for the period (excluding other
comprehensive income) attributable to equity share holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity
shares oulstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus element in equity shares issued during the year.

b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the total comprehensive income for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all
diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive,

Taxation

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s laxable income based on the

applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses, Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, In this case, the lax is also recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equily, respectively.

a)

b)

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961, Current tax assets and current lax liabilities are off set when
there is a legally enforceable right Lo set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention lo settle the assel and the

liability on a net basis.
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using (he liability method, on lemporary dilferences arising between the tax bases of
agsels and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax labilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred lax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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)
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if il is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and
associates where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that

the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and

liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or construclive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required

to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Pravisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash (lows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance coslt.

Expected [ulure operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either nol probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to seltle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither

recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements,
Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial stalements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the

requirements.
Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet dale provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of
material size or nature are only disclosed.

Recent Pronouncements

Minislry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to Hme. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian

Accounling Standm'ds) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below;

Ind A5 [ - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the enlities to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The eflective dale for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
begimning on or after April 1, 2023, The Group has evalualed the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant

in the consolidated financial statements.
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Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimales and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
accounting estimates” and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023, The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences, The effective date for adoption of this

amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no

impact on its consolidated(inancial statement.

4 IKey accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application ol

accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimales. Eslimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Any changes to accounting estimates are recognized

prospectively.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial stalements are included in the following notes:

)

Business Model Assessment: Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest) and the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Group monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the
business for which the asset was held, Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assels are managed in accordance
with an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such asscls. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.
_ N_Pu_ﬁ_._



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial stalenents

b)

d)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, wiless otherwise stated)

Provision and contingent liability: On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other
contingencies, For contingenl losses Lhat are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in fnancial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent labilities in the
linancial statemenls. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the fnancial statements, Gain

contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method : The Group's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the financial

instruments.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgment regarding the expecled behavior and life-cycle of the instruments,

as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/ expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Allowance for impairment of financial asset: The Group applies expected credit loss model (ECL) for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss. The Group recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade
receivables that do nol conslitute a fnancing lransaction. Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the loans have
been impaired. The Group is exposed to credit risk when the customer defaults on his contractual obligations. For the
computation of ECL, the loan receivables are classified into three stages based on the default and the ageing outstanding. The
Group recognises life time expected credit loss for trade receivables and has adopted simplified method of computation as per

Ind AS109. The Group considers outstanding overdue for more than 90 days for calculation of expected credit loss.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: Deferred lax assets are recognised for unused tax-loss carry forwards and unused tax
credits to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The assessment of the probability with regard to the

realisation of the tax benefit involves assumptions based on the history of the entily and budgeted data for the future.

Defined benefit plans: The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligations are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unil credil method. An actuarial valualion involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and ils long - term nature, a defined benefit

abligalion is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets: Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporling peried. The useful
lives and residual values as per schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the Group's historical experience wilh

similar assets and taking into account anlicipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.
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Note Particulars As at As at As at
No. 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 2016 17.94 17.55
Balances with banks
In current accounts 3,341.59 575757 12,017.58
Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity within 3 months)* ** 1,045.56 20,019.94 9,898.70
Bank overdrafts 6.81 3340 =
ke deposits are pledged with banks for bank guarantee and with stock
exchange as margin is Bs. 1,045.56 Lakhs (P.Y, Rs, 20,019.94 |akls)
“* Batauce of fixed depositalso includes tnterest acerited on fixed deposit
TOTAL 4,414.12 25,828.85 21,933.83
6 DANK BALANCES OTHER THAN (4) ABOVE
Fixed ileposit with original maturity more than 3 months but less than
12 ponths®** 5713517 48,616.55 35,827.18
Fixed Depasit with maturity more than 12 months® ** 13,736.51 7,228.75 1,259.31
*Fixed Deposits pledged with folloiwing:
with bintks for bank guarmitee amd with stock exchange as margin is Rs,
68,921.23 Lakhs (MY, Rs. 53,550.48 Lakfs)
with bmiks for ovendraft facility Rs. 1,918.43 Lakhs (.Y, Rs. 2,264.64
Latkdts)
tweith PERDA for registration Rs, 21.02 Lakhs (.Y, 20.00 Laklis)
with IRDA for Rs. 1099 Lakis (P.Y, 1048 Laklis)
TOTAL 70,871.67 55,845.30 37,086.49
7 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Considered gond - Secured* 1541711 20,475.51 14,664.76
Considered good - Unsecured 573,60 2,043.68 1,792.34
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaived 998,11 720,68 1,020.48
Less @ Allowance for Impairment loss (696,54) (618.13) (729.89)
TOTAL 16,292.24 22,621.74 16,747.69
"Seciered against seciritivs given as colliwteral Ing the eustoner
0] J’.h'n‘!{s |Jm"‘)“rwn :ﬁrc:.:ffvr‘.-: m':!l.’r‘vnyfﬁcrrﬁ v_;j rfrr.f'mnprm_u ar iy of Nl Nil Nil
thiem either seoerally or jointly with muy otfier person
by Debts due fremn firms inclieding LLPs o privake companies in which Nil
director is parbier, ditector or member 0.02 0.02
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accotunts are integrated part of cansolidated financial statements

(All amonnts in Rs. Lakhs, niless otherwise stated)

Not Farticulars Asat Asat As at
€ 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
8 LOAN
At amortised cost
(A) Others
Margin trading facility 252.03 198.23 14480
Loans to employee 4,701.49 3,898.83 4,385.80
TOTAL (A) GROSS 4,953.52 4,097.06 4,530.60
Less : Impairment loss allowance (4.84) (4.64) (2.53)
TOTAL (A) NET 4,948.68 4,092.42 4,528.07
(B) Secured/Unsecured
Secured 2,596.91 1,6588.59 2,581.64
Unsecured 2,356.61 2,408.47 1,948.95
TOTAL (B) GROSS 4,953.52 4,097.06 4,530.59
Less :Impairment loss allowance (4.88) (4.64) (.53
TOTAL (B) NET 4,948.68 4,092,42 4,528.07
(C) Loan In India
Public Sector . - 3
Others 4,953,52 4,097.“6 4:530.59
TOTAL (C) GROSS 4,953,52 4,097.06 4,530.59
Less @ Impairment loss allowance (-1.84) (4.64) (2.53)
TOTAL (C) NET 4,918.68 4,092.42 4,628.07
(I2) There are no outstanding loans or advances in the nature of loans
pranted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and their related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013), vither severally or jointly with any other
person, that are;
(i) repayable on demand; or
(i) without specifying any terms or period of repayment,
{E) Summary of loans by stage distribution
As at March 31, 2023 Stage 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 4,953,52 4,953.52
Less : Impairment loss allowance (4.84) (4.84)
Net carrying amount 4,948,608 - - 4,948.68
As at Mareh 31, 2022 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carsying amount 4,097.06 4,097.06
Less @ Impairment loss allowance {4.64) (4.64)
Net carrying amount 1,09242 - 5 1,092.42
Asat April 01, 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 4,530.60 4,530.60
Loss : Impairment loss allowance (2.53) (2.53)
Net carrying amount 4,528.07 - - 4,528.07

| S QL NPEE—
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Naotes to Acconnts arc integrated part of conselidated financial statenents

(All amounts in Rs. Lakls, unless otherivise stated)

Note . As at Asat As at
N Particulars ‘
9: 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits
With Exchanges and Depositorics 93415 634,40 919.40
For Rented premises 209,91 201.30 179.69
Other deposils 463 4.63 7.02
Deposit paid under Arbitration award (under dispute) 111.93 109.35 47,45
Amount recaverable from exchanges, clearing houses and depositorics 79.08 290.29 100,64
Other Receivables 7.99 0.85 0.31
Receivable from government authorities 4.75 321 -
Error Trade Stock
1.79 1.76 3
(at fair value through profit & loss) 1,2
TOTAL 1,354.24 1,254.78 1,255.73
Tpairment foss allowmice recognised on oty financinl assets Nil 250 2,50

11

SECURITIED HELD AS INVENTORIES
(At fair value through profit and loss)

(ALl qurounts {n Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

No. of Shares DESCRIPTION
As at Asal As at Asat As at As at

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021

2,000 2,000 2,000 |Credence Sound & Vision Ltd. - - -
. - 1,300 |Lakshmi Machine Works Ltd. - - 8826

22,050 22,050 22,050 [Winro Commercial (India) Ltd. 53.90 53,90 .

- 398 - |TELESYS Software Limiled - . =

- 1,350,000 - |Ashapura Minechem Limited 190.73 -

- 1,00,000 = |Chambal Fertilisers and ¢hemicals - 422.00 -

= 3,14,300 Ismt Limited - 156.68 -

- 4,47,000 = |Indiabull Real - 453.03 -

2,00,000 - - DCB 213.60 - -

6,200 - - |Kovai Medical Center & Hospitality Lid 11413 - .

1,08,000 = - |Lumax Auto Technologies Ltd 2R9.71 - -

1,00,000 - - MSTC Ltd 252,90 - -

3,50,000 - = [Oswal Agro Mills Lid 90.23 - -
7,88,250 10,35,748 25,350 Sub-total 1,014.47 1,276.34 88,26

ERROR TRADE 0.09 .
1,014.47 1,276.43 88.26

Out of the above

In India 1,004.47 1,270.43 BR.26

Outside India - - 2
TOTAL 1,014.47 1,276.43 88,26

1AMITS
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note . As at As at As at
Particulars
No. 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provisions) 142,78 276.31 208.19
(Net of provision for tax of Rs. 2,734.49 Lakhs, Previous year:
2,181.79 Lakhs)
TOTAL 142.78 276.31 208.19
13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Land at Sanand
Balance at the beginning of the year 145.59 334.63 334.63
Add : Additions during the year £ s z
Less : Deduction during the year (145.59) (159.04) -
TOTAL - 145.59 334.63
a) lapairment loss allowance recognised on Investment Properly Nil Nil Nil
b) The company docs not lold any investiment property whuose title
deecds are not held in the name of the companyy.
A
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Aceounts are integrated part of cousolidated financinl statements

(AIl amonnts {n Rs. Lakhs, inless otherwise stated)

Note  Particulars As at Asat Asat
No. 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
15 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Capital Advances for investment property - . 226.69
Prepaid Expenses 508.89 3wl 317.02
Inventory of Voice Loggers - 0.59 059
Advance for expenses 32,11 172.18 27.1
Less: Impairment loss allowance (7.41) - -
TOTAL 533.59 561.88 571.30
16 TRADE PAYABLE
Taotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entarprises (a) 17.28 7.25 35.99
Total outstanding, dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterpriscs 1,324.97 1,515.12 1,261.91
TOTAL 1,342.25 1,522.36 1,317.90
17 DEBT SECURITIES
At amortised cost
Other (Unsecured)
Market Linked non-convertible debentura® 2,500.00 -
TOTAL (A) 2,500.00 Z .
Debt securities in India 2,500.00 - -
Debt securities outside India 2 i i
TOTAL (B) 2,500,00 . -
“Particulars of Market Linked redeemable non-convertible debentures
Mo, of debentures issued 250.00
Face value of debentures (in Rs,) 10,00,000,00
Date of redemption 05-03-2024
The Coupon rate s linked to the performance of 10 year Government security -6.54% Ga 2032 (151N
[N0O2021024:1)
18 BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES)
At amaortised cost :
(a)Term Loans : Vehicle loan®*
(i) from bank (Secured) - Bd.a%9 -
* The rate of infeeest on the abooe term loan 15 7,2 %
The afovesaid term loan from bank are secired by fypothecation of vehicles
repayable i 60 monthly instalments fraim the disbirsenent of the loa of the
previans yoars,
Financial Year Amounl
F.Y. 2023-24 18.15
FY. 2024-25 19.50
FY, 2025-26 20,95
.Y, 2026-27 918
Total 67,80
(b) Loans repayable on demand
Overdraft from bank (Secured) i - 747640
(¢) Loans from related parties (Unsecured) . - +,395.00
TOTAL (A) - B4,69 11,871.40
Borrowing in India = 84.69 11,871.40
Borrowing oulside India - b -
TOTAL (B) - 84.69 11,871.40
Amonnt of whooe borrowing guarmrteed by Directors or others Nil Nil 747640
Amonnl of any personal securities given by promoter, other sharcholders or any
Nit Nil Nit

thivd party

MTA
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(All antounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

Nate  Particulars As at As at As at
Nao. 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Advance received from deblors for trading & as margin 62,385.61 72,563.88 50,574.66
Employee dues Payable 77671 715.34 711.72
Dividend and interest payable to clients 624236 48847 110.16
Exchange dues payable 188.60 258.48 236.27
Lease Liability 1,484.84 1,726.14 2,094.44
Interest accrued but not due
on debt securities 14247 5 -
on subordinated liabilibies 1,807.23 1,524.96 1,178.21
on borrowings - 5.88 38.20
Provision for Legal Cases 9.28 9.28 9.28
Provision for unspent CSR expenese 13.71 - -
Other Payables 310 3.80 2117
TOTAL 67,435.90 77,296.22 54,974.10
22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Income tax provison (net of prepaid taxes) 22243 263.61 22578
(Net of advance tax of Rs.1,319.55 lnklis Previous year:
1,722.89)
TOTAL 222.43 263.61 225.78
23 PROVISION
Provision for Employee Benefit :
- Gratuity 4260.18 449.69 437.70
TOTAL 426.18 449.69 437.70
24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Deferred tax assets
Depreciation 198.57 192,20 191.51
Ind AS adjustment on ROU Assets and Lease 10,50 26.47 =
Business Loss 212,85 15491 -
Expected Credit Loss Allowance 178,32 156.66 184,12
Unrealised fair value loss on error trade slock 17.24 - (.01
Unrealised fair value loss on investments held at
FVTPL 1.62 - -
Deferred tax labilities
Unrealised fair value gain on investments held at
EVTOCI 736.78 730.33 556.33
Ind AS adjustment on ROU Assels and Lease
liabilities = 1.89
Unrealised fair value gain on investments held at
FVTPL 0.27 - 2988
Unrealised fair value gain on error trade slock 0.06 0.05 -
TOTAL 88,01 200,14 212.46
G



NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(All mmouits in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note  Particulars As at As at Asat
No. 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
Changes in deferred tax liabilities recorded in profit For the year ended For the year ended
or loss March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation (6.44) (0.69)
Expected credit loss allowance (21.66) 2746
Ind A5 adjustment on ROU Assets and Lease liabililies (14.03) (28.35)
Unrealised fair value changes on investments held at Fy (33.91) (17.75)
Unrealised fair value changes on error trade stock 0.01 0.06
Business Loss (57.94) (154,91)
(133.97) (174.19) B
Changes in deferred tax liabilities recorded in Other
comprehensive income
On defined employee benefil plans 1.15
Unrealised fair value gain on unquoted securities held
as investments 15.85 167.87
17.00 167.87 5
25 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LTIABILITIES
Statutory Dues Payable 316.22 454,53 371.66
Advance received for Investment Property - - 225.00
TOTAL 316.22 454.53 596.66
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to Acconnts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the

¢

period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date

Particulars

As at
31-03-2023

No. of Shares

As at
31-03-2022
No. of Shares

As at
01-04-2021
No. of Shares

Eqjuity shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts for

comsideration other than cash
Equity Shares bought back by the company
Equity Shares alloted as fully paid bonus shares

(f) Shareholding of Promoters

The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023 are as follows :

Promoter Name

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

% change during the

year

Kishore Bang and Suman Bang 8,98,390 18.22% 0.00%

Dilip Bang and Anju Bang 8,98,955 18,23% 0.00%
Tatal 17,97,345 36.45%

The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022 are as follows :

Promaoter Name

" of Total Shares

s change during

the year

Kishore Bang and Suman Bang 18.22% -A2.29%

Dilip Bang and Anju Bang 18.23% 100.00%
Tuatal 36.45%

The details of the shares held by promoters as at April 01, 2021 are as follows :

Promoter Name

("0 of total Shares)

Kishore Bang and Suman Bang

26.91%

Total

26.91%

M3




NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Acconnts are integrated part of cousolidated financial statements

(All amaunts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note No. Particulars As at As at Asat
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021
27 OTHER EQUITY
a) Capital Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,878.19 1,878.19 1,876.19
Addition for the year i . a
Balance as at the end of the year 1,878.19 1,6878.19 1,878.19
b) Securities Premium
Balance as al the beginning of the year 4,945.48 4,901.98 4,901.98
Add : On account of Business Combination - 4350 o
Balance as at the end of the year 4,945.48 4,945.48 4,901.98
c) Retained Earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2746149 19,883.41 15,462.44
Add : Profit for the vear 324921 7.647.78 4,428.89
Less : Adjustment in Opening balance of reserve - - {0.50)
Add : On account of Business Combination . (69.71) -
Add : Transition to Ind AS adjustments - - (7.42)
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (250.00) - "
Balance as at the end of the year 30,460.70 27,461.49 19,883.41
Other Reserves
d) General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,612.37 2,612.37 2,612.37
Addition for the year - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,612.37 2,612.37 2,612.37
e) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year - - 2
Addition for the year 250,00 -
Balance as at the end of the year 250.00 - -
f) Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,250.65 2,250.65 2,250.05
Addition for the year - " -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,250.65 2,250.65 2,250.65
) Statutory Reserve
Balance as per last consolidated financial statements 163,06 163.06 163.06
Add : Transfer from profit and loss account - = "
Balance as at the and of the year 163.06 163.06 163.06
h) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,913.77 4,899.05 -
Addition for the year 338.60 2,014.72 4,899.05
Balance as at the end of the year 7,252.38 6,913.77 4,899.05
i) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as al the beginning, of the year 100.34 {0.25) -
Addition for the year 69.60 100,58 (0.23)
Balance as at the end of the year 169,93 100.34 (0.25)
i) Capital Reserve on Consolidation
Balance as at the beginning of the year 602,95 601,42 601.42
Add : Onaccount of Business Combination = 1.53 -
Balance as at the end of the year 602.95 602,95 601.42
TOTAL 50,585.70 46,928,29 37,189.89
IS o




NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates ta Aecounts are integrated part of consolidnted fiuancial statements

(ANl nmounts in Rs. Lakls, unless otherwise stated)

Note No.

Particulars As at As at As at
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 01-04-2021

a)

b)

¢)

d)

c)

28

29
(i)
(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(w)()

(V)b

(v)e)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Capital Reserve
Amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per Law,

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents prafits that the group earned bl date, less any transfers to General Reserve, Statutory Reserves, Dividends

and ather distributions paid to the sharchalders.

General Reserve
Amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per Law.

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Amounls set aside from relained profits as a reserve to be utilised for redemption of debentures as per Law.

Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve is created as per the provisions of section 55 of the Act, where an amount equal to the nominal value of

shares redeemed needs to be transferred to capital redemption reserve when the redemption of preference shares is out of profils,
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive ingome consist of remeasurement gaing / losses on defined benefit plans, gain / (loss) of equity instruments carried

through FVTOCL

Capital Reserve on Consolidation
Capital reserve is the excess of net assets taken over cost of consideration paid for subsidiarios.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1.94 - 5
Additions during the year - 298 -
Add : Share of profil loss 1.34 (1049

Add : Share of other comprehensive income 0.08 -

Balance as at the end of the year 3.36 1.94 =

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS

Counter Guarantees given to the Banks for the Bank Guarantee given to Stock Exchanges Rs. 63,394.00 Lakhs (Y. Rs.31,872.00 Lakhs).

Claims against the group not acknowledged as debt Rs. 1,272.63 Lakhs (Y. Rs. 327.67 Lakhs),

The Income Tax Appellate Tribunal has passed an order confirming a demand of Rs. 7.55 Lakhs for the Assessment Year 2005-06 apainst
which the group is in appeal with Bombay High Court,

The Income Tax Appellate Tribunal has passed an order confirming a demand of Rs, 812 Lakhs for the Assessment Year 200403 against

which the group is in appeal with Bombay High Court,

It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash oulllows, il any, in respect of the above pending  resolution of the

respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilitics,

The Group's pending, litigations comprise of claims against the Group pertaining Lo proceedings pending with Income Tax and various
other authorities, The Group has reviewoed all ils pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions
are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements, The Group does not expeet the outcome of

Lthese proceedings to have a malerially adverse effect on its financial resulls,

s d/ NP



Nates to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(All amonnts in Rs. Lakhs, nnle:

Note For the Year Ended For the Year
No. Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Rupees Rupees
30 INTEREST INCOME
On Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Interest on deposits with banks 3,868.12 3,530,582
Interest on loans 3.67 4.28
Other Interest Income on:
Margin Funding & Delayed payment by customers 5,380.85 4,580.95
Interest on security deposits 20.29 18.16
TOTAL 9,272.93 8,134.20
31 DIVIDEND INCOME
Dividend income from Investiment 1.33 -
Dividend income from securities held as inventorie: 7.05 4,50
TOTAL 8.38 4.50
32 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
Brokerage and fees income
Brokerage income 22,506.54 25,488.24
Depository income 391,62 384.63
TOTAL (A) 22,898.16 25,872.87
Other Commission income
Maket Research 16.04 25.02
Excess collection of charges 4.70 -
Commission General Insurance 78.32 0.42
Commission Life Insurance 2007 -
TOTAL (B) 128.12 25.44
TOTAL (A + B) 23,026.28 25,898.31
33 NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGE
Net gain /(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Securities held as invenlories
Realised - 172.43
Unrealised - 49.79
- Investment
Realised 13.89
Unrealised _ 15.56
TOTAL - 251.68
34 OQTHER OPERATING INCOME
Excess turnover charges recovered 207.84 22047
Business Support Services .\ 19.21 4.26
P .
TOTAL (ZTUM E?j 7 227.06 224.73

i



NIRMAIL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Acconunts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

(All mumounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertvise stated)

Note For the Year Ended For the Year
No. Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Rupees Rupees
35 OTHER INCOME
Interest on staff loan 2717 21.m
Profit/ (loss) on Sale of Fixed Assels 3.25 11.63
Interest on income tax refund 0.02 11.71
Sundry Balance written back (net) 6.34 0.09
Miscellaneous income 1.35 0.05
TOTAL 3812 44,50
36  FINANCECOST
On instruments measured at amortized cost
Interest on borrowing costs 265.17 524.21
Interest on lease Habilities 172.86 188.68
Interest on subordinated liabilities 434.75 354.26
Interest on debt securities 14247 -
Other borrowing cost 467.78 253.24
Naotional Interest on Staff Loan 5.94 4,29
Interast on shortfall of advance tax = 0.24
Other Interest Expense on : -
Clienl's fixed deposit* 788.62 586.93
Other Interest Expense 42,05 48.91
TOTAL 2,319.62 1,960.75
*Represents interest paid to clients pertaining to fixed deposits created on
behalf of clients whiclt are pledged to stock exchanges for margin
requiirenicnts.
37  FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSE
Sub-brokerage/ Client Introduction Fees 10,598.22 12,012.92
TOTAL 10,598.22 12,012.92
38 IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
At Amortised Cost
ECL on Trade Receivables 7845 (111.76)
ECL on Advances 4.91 E
ECL on Loans 0.20 211
Bad Debls 21.98 65.58
TOTAL 105.53 (44.07)
39 NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Loss on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
On trading portfolio
- Securities held as inventories
Realised 161.03 -
Unrealised 119.39 -
Sub- total (A) 280.42 =

s
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes ta Acconts are integrated part of consolidaled financial statementls

(AN amonnts in Rs, Lakhs, unle,

Note For the Year Ended For the Year
No. Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Rupees Rupees

Gain on financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss
On trading portfolio
- Investments
Realised 2048
Unrealised 597

- Securities held as inventories

Realised 127.40
Unrealised 111
Sub- total (B) 154.96

TOTAL (A)-(B) 125.46

40 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages £,568.88 5,146.38
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 478.90 481,43
Staff Welfare Expenses 144.49 108.86

TOTAL 9,192.26 B,736.66

41 OTHER EXPENSE

SEBL Exchange Expenses & Depositary expenses 623,22 417.87
Legal & Professional Fees 802.17 733,40
Advertisement And Business Promolion 585,14 419.77
Electricity Expenses 206.51 186,52
Computer Expenses 283.56 250.74
Travelling & Conveyance Ixpenses 275.82 180.01
Office Expenses 14665 12132
Trading Platform & Software Charges 125.89 12315
Communication Cost 146,68 14158
Insurance Expenses 108.51 85.95
Annual Maintenance Charges 103.57 §6.15
Rent, Rates & Taxes 92.56 10236
VSAT é Lease Line Charges 36.10 6287
Tolephone Charges 7.99 712
Leaseline Charges & Internet charges 7.68 4.55
Remuncration to Auditors (Refer Note 30) 2847 17.37
Repairs & Maintenance 90.28 152,74
Fastival Expensos 0.95 12.69
Membership & Subscription l'ces inzz2 41.61
Vehicle Expenses 0222 59.65
Printing & Stationery 65.74 46,96
Stamp é& Franking Charpes 421 3221
Miscellaneous Expenses 26.72 32.84
CSK Expenditure 78.09 23.54
Interest/Penalty On Late Payment Of Taxes ERE! 1.77
Society Maintenance Charges 24.07 35.07
Loss on sale of investment property 59.66 109,11
L.oss on error trade 10,03 6.59
Claim Settlement Expenses 3.75 6.96
Bank Charges 113 8.65
Donation 576 1.12
Sundry Balance Writlen OFF (Net) - 13.29
Arbitration Award Expenses 30.11 -
TOTAL 4,135.11 3,528.82

42  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

There are no such impairable assets at the year ended in term of INID AS = 36, Hence group has not made any provision for impairment loss.

43 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the business of Broking and related activities, The operations are entirely in India, There is only one business
segment and one geographical segment and hence segment information is not requirgd to be disclosed as per explanation given in IND A5 108

"Operating Segmenis", /OL/{
LM TS o
NS




NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Acconnts are infegrated part of consolidated finaucial slatements

44 Related Party Disclosure !

I) List of related parties and relations ;

11)

a)

b)

Associates

= Mindset Securities Private Limited
* Shresth Securities Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

* Kishore Bang

= Dilip Bang

Samir Kamdar

Rakesh Bhandari
Kishorkumar Agarwal
Bhadresh Desai

* Deepak Agarwal

* Sunil Jain

Other Related Party

= Bang Equity Broking Private Lim
= Nirmal Bang Commodities Priva
* Bang Securities Private Limited

= Rockhard Tech Solutions Private

ited
te Limited

Limited

= Nirmal Bang Niveshalaya Private Limiled
* Nirmal Bang Financial Services Private Limited

= Shresth Tech Solutions Limited

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure of transactions between the group and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on March 31,
2023 as per Indian Accounting Standard 24 is given below:

Sr No.

Particulars

Closing Balance as
on March 31, 2023
Receivable/
(Payable)

Transaction 2022-
2023

Closing Balance
as on March 31,
2022 Receivable/
{Payable)

Transaction 2021-
2022

Associate Companies

Mindset

Limited
Rent Expense
Brokerage Income
Preference Share Dividend

Securities Private

45.90
15.01
15249

48.00
5491
7.50

II.

Other Related Party

U]

(i)

Bang Equity Broking Private
Limited
Brokerage Income

Nirmal Bang Commodities

Private Limited
Brokerage Income
Current Account

0.57

239

0.05

110

3.15

(Mis




NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Noles ¢

44 Related Party Disclosure :

connls are integrated part of consolidated finaweial stalemenls

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, witless otherwise stated)

Closing Balance as Closing Balance
i : on March 31, 2023 | Transaction 2022- | as on March 31, | Transaction 2021-
Sre Partionlace Receivable/ 2023 2022 Receivable/ 2022
(Payable) (Payable)
(iii) |Bang Securities Private Limited
Rent Expense - 90.00 - 90.00
Brokerage Income - 0.76 - 4.17
Balance Receivable / (Payable) p s 10038
. Nirmal Bang Niveshalaya
() Private Limited
Current Account 0.20 - . Y
Nirmal Bang Financial Services
v) Private Limited
Loan Taken - 1,11,993.00 = 1,12,733.00
Loan repaid - 1,11,993.00 - 1,12,733.00
Interest expense - 104.02 (3.20) 155.98
Brokerage Income - 9.58 - 15.51
Currenl Account 0.04 - - =
111,  |Key Management Personnel
(i) |Dilip Bang
Direclor Remuneration (15.72) 300.00 - 300.00
Brokerage Income - 0.39 - 1.41
Current Account 1.55 - 7.13 -
(ii) |Kishore Bang
Director Remuneration (0.62) 300.00 - 300,00
Brokerage Income - 1.89 - 0.92
Repayment of loan - - - 2275
(iii) |Samir Kamdar
Director Remuneration (2.43) 30.81 (0.26) 28.52
Brokerage Income - 0.00 - 0.05
DP Charges - 0.00 - 0.01
(iv) [Sunil Jain
Director Remuneration (7.49) 49.06 (7.89) 51.73
Brokerage Income - 0.01 - 0.02
DP Charges - - & 0.00
(v) |Rakesh Bhandari
Director Remuneration (3.67) 94,43 (1.14) 50.06
{(vi) | Kishorlcumar Agrawal
Director Remuneration (2.82) 24.77 (2.74) 25.23

| AMS
.




NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

45

46

47

Income Tax

(All amownts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March, 2023 and 2022 are:

For the Year Ended March 31,

For the Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 2023 2023
Current tax 1,544.66 1,989.34
Adjustment in respect of income tax of prior years 98.05 {24.53)
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary (133.97) (174.19)
differences
Total tax charge : 1,508.73 1,790.62
Reconciliation of income tax expense and effective tax
reconciliation
Profit before tax 515912 747890
Ind AS adjustments on profit before tax (511.38) (803.49)
Profit before tax after Ind AS adjustments 5,670.50 8,282.40
1,427.15

Tax on above at corporate tax rate of 25.17% (P.Y. 25.17%) i

2,084.51
Tax impact for below adjustments
Other disallowances/allowances (net of allowances/ disallowances) 1359 (30.08)

1,460.74 2,054,

Tax expense at effective tax rate of 25.58%(P.Y. 28.20%) WA
Utilization of tax losses of previous periods 56.19 2746
Carry forward of tax losses 27.73 (92.56)
Tax expense as per profit and loss account 1,544.66 1,989.34

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) :

The earning considered in ascertaining the group’s earning per share comprises the net profit after tax, The number of shares used in

caleulation of basic/ diluted EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period which is calculated as below

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars Ended Ended
31-03-2023 31-03-2022

Calculation of weighted average number of shares
No. of Equity shares at the beginning of the year 49,531,070 49,31,070
No. of shares issued during the year - :

49,31,070 49,31,070
Total Weighted Equity shares O/s. at the end of the year
Total comprehensive income available for equity sharcholders (in 3,658.83 9,762.04
lakhs)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 49,31,070.00 49,31,070.00
Basic / Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 74.20 197.97

LEASES

The Group has laken various office premises on operating lease for the various periods with an option Lo renew the lease by mutual consent

on mutually agreeable terms.

Information about leases for which the group is a lessee are presented below:

A) Right of use assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Balanee as at 1st April 1,620.98 2,101.95
Adjustiment on transition to Ind AS 116 5 3
Movement during the year 314,90 8123
Depreciation on Right-Of-Use (ROU) assels (611.97) (562.20)
Balance as at 31st March 1,323.92 1,620.98

N
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(A)

(B)

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(All amounts in Rs. Lakls, muless otherwise stated)
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plans
The Group operates defined contribution plan (Provident fund) for all qualifying employees of the Group. The employees
of the Group are members of a retirement contribution plan operated by the government. The Group is required o
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement contribution scheme to fund the benefits. The only

obligation of the Group with respect to the plan is to make the specified contributions.

The Group’s contribution to Provident Fund aggregating Rs. 236.35 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 207.41 Lakhs) has been
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

Defined Benefit Plans

Characteristics of defined benefit plan

The group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The group’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary
plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund managed by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and group is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate rislc

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government securities, Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending

Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members, As such,

an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it
will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government
securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax
Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any
longevity risk.

Concentration Risk

Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance group and a default will wipe out all

the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Characteristics of defined benefit plans

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements,

Maintenance of Fund

A separate trust fund is created to manage the Graluily plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as
guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962,

= " e
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(e)

Quantitative Disclosures

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The principal assumplions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows :

i) Previous year :

- : As at As at

Eardouln March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expected Return on Plan Assets 6.86% 6.84%
Rate of Discounting 6.86% 6.84%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate During Employment

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

Mortality Rate After Employment N.A N.A.
ii) Current year :

As at As at

Particulars
£ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.15% 6.86%
Rate of Discounting 7.15% 6.86%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate During Emplaoyment

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Uliimate

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

Category of Plan Assets

Insurer managed fund 100% 100%
Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation are as follows :

. As at As at
" March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the period 1,600.46 1,489.94
[nterest cost 117.13 103.47
Current service cost 181.88 181.91
(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) (11.07) 478
Benefits paid from the fund (66.55) (91.01)
Remeasurements (gains)/losses:
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions - (0.47)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions {41.38) (82.01)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in experience
adjustments (21.17) (6.15)
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
period 1,759.32 1,600.46

AMTS
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NIRMAL BANG SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows :

(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

N As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fair Value of Plan Assets al the beginning of the period 1,150.77 1,052.24
Interest income 84.21 73.07
Contributions by the Employer 178.29 119.61
(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments) (11.07) -
Benefits paid from the fund (66.55) (91.01)
Return on Plan Assels excluding interest income (2.52) (3.13)
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
period 1,333.14 1,150.77
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss are as follows :
. Asat As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Service Cost 181.88 181.68
Net Interest Cost 3292 30.40
Total Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or
loss 214,81 212.09
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income are as follows :
: As at As at
Particulars
! March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (69.67) (100.58)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 2.52 313
'll'otal Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or (67.15) (97.45)
083
Reconciliation of Net (Asset)/Liability
: As at As at
Particulars 7
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net defined benefit Hability / (asset) as at the beginning of
the year 449.69 437.70
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 214.81 21710
Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (60.02) (85.49)
Employer's Contribution (177.06) (119.61)
Net defined benefit liability/(assct) as at the end
ability/(asset) @ end of the 427.41 429,69
year
Expected Contribution to the fund in the next year
: As at As at
Particulars y
" March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expected contribution to fund in the next year 370.66 353.49
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments From the Fund are as follows :
Particulars ham el
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date
of Reporting
1st Following Year 73.75 53.03
2nd Following Year 70.65 58.25
ard Following Year 7049 80.68
4th Following Year 10244 65,30
5th Following Year 59.03 94.05
Sum of Years 6 To 10 601,92 305,14

Sum of Years 11 and above

- 4,831.96

1,588.79

JAM K
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(All amourts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)

Sensitivity analysis [or significant assumptions is as shown below ;

Particulars gl A8 at
ks March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 1,750 1,595
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (199.99) (190.33)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 242,52 232,28
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 1682.76 179.14
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rale of Salary Increase (166.18) (162.22)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 5.76 (0.13)
Dalta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (7.24) (0.21)

The sensitivily analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another 25 some of the assuniptions may be correlated,

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivily analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been caleulated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the

projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

DETAILS OQF FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION :

For the year Ended For the year Ended

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

CIF Value of Import Nil Nil
Expenditure in Foreign Currency 26,34 21.98
Tatal value of imported & indigenous raw malerial, spare
parts and components consumed and percentage thereof. |Nil Nil
Remittance of Dividend in Foreign Currency Nil Nil
Earning in Foreign Exchange 22.05 16.91

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group derives revenue primarily from the share broking business. lts other major revenue sources are commission income
and Interest income .

Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022, The Group believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors,

Nature of Services

Broking Income - Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services, in accordance with the
terms of contract,

Depository Income - Income from services rendered on behalf of depository is recognised upon rendering of the services, in
accordance with the terms of contract

Interest Income - Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them. Interest income is recognised
on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding from customers or on the financial instrument and the
rate applicable,

Dividend Income - Dividend income is recognized in the Stalement of profit and loss on the date that the Group's right o receive
payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the

amount of dividend can be reliably measured, This is generally when the shareholflets approve the dividend.
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Disaggregate revenue information :

(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertvise stated)

: For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Brokerage Income 22,5006.54 25,488.24
Inlerest income 9,272.93 8,134.20
Depository Income Y1062 384.63
Cammission Income 107.39 0.42
Excess collection of charges .70 -
Market Research Income 16.04 25.02

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for
borrowings are:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021

Financial Assets :
Bank Balances
Fixed deposits
Receivables
Trade receivables

Total assets pledged as security

71,128.28

16,920.54

88,048,582

75,084.23 46,343.63
23,178.75 17,439.71
98,262.98 63,783.34

Terms and conditions :

Trade receivables and Fixed deposits are pledge with Banks against borrowing facilities taken by the group. Further debtors of cash segment which

are outstanding for more than 7 days are not considered by bank for the purpose of security

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period which require any adjusiment or disclosure in the financial statements.

CAPI ANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its

aclivities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital

to sharchalders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended March 21, 2023

and March 31, 2022, However, they are under constant review by the Board.

As regards to return of capital to sharcholders, the group has not proposed or paid dividend on equity shares during the financial year 2022-2023 and

2021-20232.

The group monilors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by tolal capital plus net debt. The group includes within net debt, wade

and other payables less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars

Debt Securities
Borrowings
Subordinated Liabilities
Net Delbt (A)

Equity Share Capital

Retained Earnings

Securities Premium

Capital Reserve

General Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Total Capital (B)

Capital and Net Debt (C) = (A) + (B)

Gearing Ratio (A) / (C)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
2,500.00 -

- 84.69
5,450.00 5,450.00
7.950.00 5,534.09

493,11 49311
30,627.601 27,579.36
4,945,48 4,945.48
1,878.19 1,878.19
2,612.37 2,612.37
2,230,635 2,250.65
250.00 =
43,057.41 39,759.16
51,007.41 45,293.85
15.59% 12.22%

N==S
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(Al amonnts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e, an exit price), regardless of whether that price is divectly

observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues.

This note describes the fair value measurement of both financial and non-financial instruments.

(I) Categorisation of financial instruments

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories i.e; Fair vale through profit and loss (FVTPL), Fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCT) and Amortised cost is presented below ;

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents = - 441412
Bank Balance othan than Cash and Cash equivalents - - 70,871.67
Trade Receivables - - 16,292.24
Loans & - 4,948.68
Investments 8,813.38 6,924.64 12,863.14
Securities held as inventories 1,014.47
Other Financial Assets - - 1,354.24
Tatal 9,827.85 6,924.64 1,10,744.09
Financial Liabilites
Trade Payables - - 1,342.25
Debt Securities - 2,500.00
Deposits - - 1,146.75
Subordinated labities - - 5,450.00
Other Financial liabilities 67,435,90
Total - - 77,874.90
As al March 31, 2022
Particulars FVTIL FVTOCI Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 25,828.85
Bank Balance othan than Cash and Cash equivalents - 55,545.30
Trade Receivables - 22,621.74
Loans - - 4,092 42
[nvestments 438.78 (,786,12 13,045.80
Securities held as inventories 1,276.43 . -
Other Financial Assels - . 1254.784207
Total 1,715.21 6,786.12 1,22,688.89
Financial Liabilites
Trade Payables - - 1,522.36
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 84.69
Deposits - - 1,258.30
Subordinated liabities - - 5,450.00
Other Financial liabilities - - 77,296.22
Total - - 85,611.57
=
—
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(Al amronnts in Rs. Lakhs, wnless otherwise stated)

Asat April 1, 2021

Particulars EVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 21,933.83
Bank Balance othan than Cash and Cash equivalents - - 37,086.49
Trade Receivables = - 16,747.69
l.oans - - 4,528.07
Investments 7,503.74 5,318.69 10,372.01
Securities held as inventories £8.26
Other Financial Asscts - - 1,255.73
Total 7.592.00 5,318.69 91,923.81
Financial Liabilites
Trade Payables - - 1,317.90
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 11,871.40
Deposits - - 1,158.16
Subordinated liabities = - 100.00
Other Financial liabilities - - 24,974.10
Total - - 69,421.56

(LI} Fair Value Hierarchy

The group determines fair values of its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is baged on quated
markel prices al the end of the reporting period. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, mutual funds) hence the fair value is determined
using observable market data such as latest declared NAV/ recent market deals.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on abservable
unlisted equity instruments.

market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for

Valuation Techniques used to determine fair values :
Specific valuation techniques used o value linancial instruments include :

a) Quoted equity investments - Quoted closing price on stock exchange as at the reporting date,

b) Mutual Funds - Net assel value (NAV) of the scheme reparted by the Asset Management group as at the reporting date,

c) Unquoted equity investments - Intrinsic value of the equity shares derived by the management using the fair values of asscts and liabilities of the
eyuity issuing companies as at the reporting dates.

d) Unquoted preference investments - Intrinsic value of the preference shares derived by the management.

Quantitative Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets ag at March 31, 2023

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment of Quoted Mutual Funds - £,813.38 -
Investment in Ungquoted Equity Instruments - - 19,787.79
Inventories of Quoted Equity Shares 1,016.26 - -
Total 1,016.26 8,813.38 19,787.79
Quantitative Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Level Level 2 Level 3
Investment of Quoted Mutual Funds B 438,78 =
Investment in Unquoted Eyquily Instruments - - 19,831.93
Inventories of Quoted Equity Shares 1,278.19 - -
Total 1,278.19 438,78 19,831.93
Quantitative Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at April 1, 2021

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment of Quoted Mutual Funds - 7.503.74
Investment in Unquoted Equily Instruments - - 15,690.69
Inventories of Quoted Fguily Shares 5949
Taotal 89.49 7,503.74 15,690.69

| M (5
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(All mmounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(M) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets, These are
financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, due to their short-term nature,

Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilitics are not measured at FVTPL, whose carrying
amounts approximale fair value, because of their short-term nature.

(I'V) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements is summarised below;

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021

Fair Value of instruments 19,787.79 19,831.93 15,690.69
Significant unobservable inputs
Intrinsic value of equity shares of Bang Securities
Private Limited
-increase by 5% 346.23 33931 265,93
- decrease by 5% (316.23) (339.31) (265,93)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part of the group's business and sound risk management is critical to the success of Healthy Business Model. As a
financial intermediary, the group is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and investment and the environment within which
it operates and primarily includes credil, liquidity and market risks, The group has a risk managemenl policy which covers risk
associated with the financial assets and labilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors,

The group has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the
group, The risk management process is continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the changing risk scenario and the agility of
the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for ils appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of

continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

The group has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed by implementing required preventive, detective and corrective controls, and through mitigating aclions on a continuing
basis.

The financial instruments of the group have exposure to the following risks :
Liquidity risk

The group’s Management monitors asset liability mismatches Lo ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on
either side of the Balance Sheet.

The group continuously monitors liquidity in the market; and as a part of its liquidity strategy, the group maintains a liquidity buffer

managed by an active investment desk to reduce this risk,

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the group may nolb meet its financial abligalions. Liquidity risk arises due to the unavailability of
adequale funds at an appropriate cost or tenure, The objective of liquidity risk management, is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure lhal [unds are available for use as per requirements, The group consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operating and
financial aclivities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Our resource mobilisation team sources funds from
multiple sources, including from banks, financial institutions and capital markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource
mobilisation team is responsible for diversifying fund raising sources, managing interest rate risks and maintaining a strong relationship
with banks, financial institutions, mutual funds and rating agencies to ensure the liquidity risk is well addressed.

Refer Note 55 For analysis of maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future Casgh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while

optimizing the relurn. {704_6
' e
—_—
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(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othertoise stated)
(i) Foreign currency risk

Fareign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.

Foreign currency risk management

In respect of the foreign currency transactions, the group does not hedge the exposures since the management believes that the same is
insignificant in nature and will not have a material impact on the group.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes

The group’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and loans given to customers, Such instruments exposes
the group o [air value inlerest rate risk. Management believe that the interest rate risk attached to this financial assets are not significant

due to the nature of this financial assets,

Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure Lo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021
Loans 4,953.52 4,097.06 4,530.60
Borrowings 7,950.00 5,534.69 11,971.40

Sensitivity Analysis

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income/ expense from loans/ borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

The following table demaonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of

the group’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021
Loans:

[nterest rales - increase by 1% 49.54 40.97 4531
Interest rales - decrease by 1% (49.54) (40.97) (45.31)
Borrowings :

Interest rates - increase by 1% (79.50) (55.35) (119.71)
Interest rates - decrease by 1% 79.50 53,35 119.71

Market Price Risk

The group is exposed to markel price risk, which arises from securities held as inventories and investments classified at FVTPL, The

management monitors the proportion of these securities in its trading portfolio based on market indices. Material securities within the

portfalio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the appropriate authority.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

As at April 01, 2021

Exposure to price risk

9,827 85

1,715.21

7,392.00

Sensitivity Ananlysis to price risk

The following lable summarises the impact of sensitivity of NAVs / price with all other variables held constant. The below impact on

the group’s profit before tax is based on changes in the NAVs / price of the investments held at FYTPL at balance sheet date:

", of Change Profit/ (loss) ‘
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Impact on profit befare tax for 5% increase in 491.39 8576 379.60
Impact on profit belore tax for 3% increase in (491.39) (85.76) (379.60)

m@%
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(Al mmounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless othervise stated)
(I1I) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligation. The group manages and controls credil risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relations Lo such limits. The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented in the financial statements. The group’s major classes

of financial assels are cash and cash equivalents, loans, investments, deposits, rade receivables and security deposits,

Deposits with banks are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated banks/financial

institutions as approved by the Board of directors

Investments include investment in liquid mutual fund units that are marketable securities of eligible financial institutions for a specified
time period.

The management has established accounts receivable policy under which customer accounts are regularly monitored. The group has a
dedicated risk management leam, which monitars the posilions, exposures and margins on a continuous basis,

Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and margin trading facility loans

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Ar at 31 March 2022 As at 01 April 2021
Trade Receivables (Net of impairment) 16,292.24 22,621.74 16,747.69
Margin trading facilily loans (Net of impairment) 4,690,65 3,804,719 4,383 27

The financial instruments covered within the scope of ECL include (inancial assets measured at amortised cost such as trade receivables
and loans,

Trade Receivables:

The loss allowance has been measured using lifetime ECL except for financial assets on which there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since injtal recognition. At each reporting date, the group assessess whether financial assels carried at amortized cost is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is eredit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occured since intial recagnilion,

A simplified approach has been considered [or measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) of trade receivables at a amount equal o
lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on lrade receivables are caleulated based on actual historic credil loss experience over the preceding four years
on the tatal balance of trade receivables.

Based on industry practices and business environment in which the enlity operates, Management considers unsecured receivables as
default if the payment is overdue for more than 90 days, Management would consider impaivment on client balance which are
unsecured and overdue for less than 90 days on case o case basis, based on their scope of recoverability. In cases where the payment is
overdue for more than 1 year, the managemenl treals all such customers as credit impaired and probabilily of default (PD) on these
receivables is considered al 100%.

Loans

Loans include Margin Trading Facility(MTF) and Loans to Staff for which staged approach is taken inlo consideration for determination
ol ECL,

Stage 1

All positions in the MTF loan book are considered as stage 1 assel for computation of expected eredit loss. For exposures where there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that is not credit impaired upon arigination. Margin trading
facility and loans to staff are considered in stage 1 for delermination of ECL. Exposure to credit risk in stage | is computed considering
historical probability of default, market movements and macro-ecconomic environment,

WATS .
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Notes to Accounts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otheroise stated)

Stage 2

Exposures under stage 2 include overdues up to 90 days pertaining to principal amount, interest and any other charges on the MTF
loan book which are unsecured. While arviving at the secured position of the client, management has considered the securities pledged
with the group as collateral and also securities lying in the demat account of the customers where the customer has given power of
attorney to the group.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since initial
recognition. In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group uses days past due

information and other qualitative factors to assess delerioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recopnised.

Stage 3

Exposures under stage 3 include overdues past 90 days pertaining to principal amount, interest and any other charges on MTF loan
book which are unsecured.

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset have occwrred, For financial assets that have become credil impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised

Folowing table provides informalion about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Margin Trading Faciilty Loans.

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Carrying Value ECL

Stage 1 4,953.52 4.84
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 - -

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Carrying Value ECL

Stage 1 = 4,097 06 4.64
Stage 2 . -
Stage 3 - -

As at April 01, 2021

Particulars Carrying Value ECL
Stage 1 4,530.60 253
Stage 2 = A

Stage 3 - 3
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57 DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO UNDISCLOSED INCOME

58

59

(ANl amonnts tn Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Duting the yeat, the group has not surrendered or disclosed any income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). Accordingly, there are no transaction which are not

recorded in the hooks of accounts.

COMPLIANCE WITIH NUMBER OF LAYERS OF COMPANIES

The group has complied with the requirements of the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

Details of transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 ;

Current Year:

Name of struck off companies : Relationship with the Relationship Nature of transaction |Balance outstanding
companies with the group

C P and Sons Trade Technic Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage &
Agamya Argha Consultancy Services Private Limiteda  |Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Bustling Securities Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Capable Infrastructure Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerape (0.04)
Mortal Realestate Limited Trade Receivable Brokerapge (0.06)
Romy Realty Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage (0.19)
Yashshree Capital Private Limited Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Yashshree Capital Private Limited Sub-broker Deposit (0.02)
Arkr Financial Services Pyt Lid Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Arkr Financial Services Pyt Ltd Sub-broker Deposit (0.83)
Gagan Investmnet Cons Pyt Ltd Sub-broker Deposit -
Sg Investment Professionals Pyl Lid Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Shalimar Multi Trade India Ltd Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Shalimar Multi Trade India Ltd Sub-broker Deposit -
Turtle Investment Adv Pyt Lid Sub-broker Sub-brokerage .
Turtle Investiment Adv Pyt Ltd Sub-broker Deposit -
Win Track Multitrade Pvt. Ltd. Closed Sub-broker Deposit -
Wismore Trading & Investment Consultancy Pvt Lid Sub-broker Deposit (0.44)
Chitra And Co. - Chennai-1040 Trade Payable Repairs and maintenance -
Knb Investment Consultancy Py, Lid. Sub-broker Sub-brokerage (0.26)
Knb Investment Consultancy Pvt, Ltd. Sub-broker Deposit (0.50)
Money Builder Financial Services Pvt, Ltd. Sub-broker Sub-brokerage v
Maney Builder Financial Services Pyl Litd. Sub-broker Deposit -
Khandelwal Construction Co. Trade Payable Renl -
Darshana Trading Private Limited Sub-broker Sub-brokerage

Darshana Trading Private Limited Sub-broker Deposit .
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Notes to Acconnts are integrated part of consolidated financial statements

60

61

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vii)

Previous Year:

(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, niuless othertvise stated)

Name of struck off companies :

Relationship

with the group

Nature of transaction

Balance outstanding

C P and Sons Trade Technic Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage (0.01)
Agamya Argha Consultancy Services Private Limiteda  [Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Agamya Argha Consullancy Services Private Limiteda  |Sub-broker Deposit (0.04)
Bustling Securities Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Capable Infrastructure Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Mortal Realestate Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Romy Realty Private Limited Trade Receivable Brokerage (0.19
Yashshree Capital Private Limited Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Arkr Financial Services Pvt Lid Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Arler Financial Services Pvt Lid Sub-broker Deposit (0.83)
Gagan Investmnet Cons Pyt Litd Sub-broker Deposit (0.49)
Sg Investmenl Professionals Pyt Lid Trade Receivable Brokerage -
Shalimar Multi Trade India Ltd Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Shalimar Mult Trade India Ltd Sub-broker Deposit (0.71)
Turtle Investment Adv Pyt Lid Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Turtle [nvestment Ady Pyt Lid Sub-broker Deposit (0.33)
Win Track Mullitrade Pvt. Ltd. Closad Sub-broker Deposit (0.05)
Wismore Trading & Investment Consultancy Pyt Lid Sub-broker Deposit (0.44)
Knb Investment Consullancy Pyt. Ltd. Sub-broker Sub-brokerage (1.83)
Knb Investment Consultancy Pyt Lid, Sub-broker Deposit (2.10)
Money Builder Financial Services Pyt Ltd. Sub-broker Sub-brokerage .
Maoney Builder Financial Services Pvi. Lid. Sub-broker Deposit {0.27)
Khandelwal Construction Co. Trade Payable Rent -
Darshana Trading Private Limited Sub-broker Sub-brokerage -
Darshana Trading Private Limited Sub-broker Deposit (0.02)

DISCLOSURE FOR SECURITY OF BORROWED FUNDS

Quarlerly slatements of current assets filed with banks for fund borrowed from those banks on the basis of security of current assels are

in agreement with the books of account. Further, no funds have been borrowed from financial institutions where current assels have

been placed as collateral security.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

No transactions or disclosures {o report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended
b

Schedule 11T of the Act;

Revaluation of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ageing schedule of CWIP and Intangible under development

Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Properly Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

Wilful defaulter

Scheme of arrangements in terms of section 230 Lo 237 of the Act

Utilisation of borrowed funds/ share premium

Crypto currency or Virtual currency

ML )/ i
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63

(A)

()

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(All amonnts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

These are the group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with [nd AS,

The group has prepared its Ind AS compliant financial statements for year ended on March 31, 2023, the comparative period ended on
March 31, 2021 and an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 (the date of transition), as described in the summary of
sigmificant accounting policies. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the group in restating its previous GAAP financial
statements, including the Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 and the linancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

For periods ended up to the year ended March 31, 2021, the group had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAF).

Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS, which were considered to be material or significant by the group.

Mandatory Exceptions
Estimates

Ind AS 101 prescribes that an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies),
unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

The group’s Ind AS estimates as at the transition date are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with
previous GAAFR.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

As set out in [nd AS 101, the group has applied the derecognition requirements of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occutring
on of after the date of transition to Ind AS,

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind A5 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
exist at the date of transilion Lo Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

As setoul in Ind A5 101, an entity shall apply the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively if it does not entail any undue

cost ar effort. The group has assessed impairment of financial assets in canformity with Ind AS 109,
Optional Exemptions
Deemed cost

The group has adopled the carrying value determined in accordance with I-GAAP for all of its property plant & equipment and
investment property as deemed cost of such assets at the ransition date,

IS
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(B)

(i)

(ii)

Reconciliation between IGAAP and Ind AS

Equity Reconciliation

(All amounts it Rs. Lakhis, unless othertoise stated)

Particulars

Foot Note No,

As at March 31, 2022

As at April 01, 2021

Equity as reported under IGAAP

Adjustments

Fair value gain/ (loss) on Unquoted Equity Instruments
Fair value gain/ (loss) on Quoted Mutual Funds

Fair value gain/ (loss) on Quoled Equity Instrumenls
Fair Value changes in Error trade stock

Interest on Subordinated Liabilities

Reclassification of Redeemable Cumulative Preference
shares to Subordinated Liabilities

Impact of expected credit loss allowance

[mpact of leases under Ind A5 116

Impact of EIR on staff loans

Impact of EIR on security deposits

Impact of Business combination

Share of profits of associate

Total Adjustments
Deferred tax impact (OCT)
Deferred tax impact (P&L)

Equity as reported under Ind AS

L O B B R

b = S

11
11

42,703.88 32,884.11
7,571.37 4,834.44
1,284.40 118.71

46.03 12.99
019 (0.33)
(1,524.96) (1,178.21)
(3,200.00) (100,00
12.38 13753
(105.15) .
1.21 .
(2.32) -
(24.68)
1,401.84 1,597.11
5,459.31 5,422.24
(734.69) (553.06)
(7.71) (70.30)
47,421.40 37,683.00

Reconciliation of profit as per Ind AS with profit reported under previous IGAAP for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Foot Note No. As at March 31, 2022
Net profit as per the erstwhile IGAAP 7,677.27
Adjustments
Fair value gain/ (loss) on Mutual Funds 1 (103.81)
Fair Value changes in error trade stock 2 0.51
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on post retirement benefit plans
s b 3 §6.7

reclassified in OCI (86.72)
Gain on fair value measurement of securities held as 2 23,04
inventories carried at FVTPL o
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 4 (346.76)
Dividend on Preference shares charped in IGAAP 4 (7.50)
Impact of expected credit loss allowance 5 (125.15)
Impact of leases under Ind A5 116 6 (105.15)
Impact of EIR on securily deposits 8 (3.32)
Impact of EIR on slaff [oans 7 1.21
Changes in share of profit/ (loss) of associates 665,90
Delerred tax impact on the above 11 47.21
Net profit after tax (before QCI) as per Ind AS 7,646.74
Adjustments for Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain/(loss) on post retirement benefit plans 3 100,40
Ch-‘m?;uﬁ in share of other comprehensive income of 715.34
associales
Fair value gain/ (loss) of investment held through fair ; ;

. ‘ TR ; 1 1,467 44
value through other comprehensive income
Tax impact on the above 11 (167.87)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 9,762.05

O O?/
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(Al amonnts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iv)

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

There are no material adjustments to the statement of cash flows as reported under the IGAAT
Foot Notes to to first-time adoption

Fair valuation of investments

Under the previous Indian GAAP, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long-term invesiments or
current investments based on the intended holding period. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than
temporary decline in the value of such investments. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS,
these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised
in other equity as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or loss / other comprehensive income for the year ended March
31, 2022

Fair valuation of securities held as inventories

Under the previous Indian GAAP, listed equity shares were classified as stock-in-trade as the shares are held for trading and errov trade
stock. Under, IGAAP, the stock-in-trade were valued at lower of cost or market value, computed category wise and resulting valuation
loss was debrted to the profit and loss account. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting
fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in other equity as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or
loss for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss under the
previous GAAP, There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2022.

Reclassification of Redeemable Preference shares (CRPS) to Subordinated liabilities

Cumulative and Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (CRPS) forms part of the Share Capital under IGAAP. As per Ind AS
32, since terms of these preference shares requires mandatory redemplion for the fixed and determinable amount and has a contractual
obligation to deliver cash at redemption, such instrument are classified as a liability and interest cost is accrued at the rate of dividend
applicable. Due to such adjustment, paid up share capital has decreased and classifed as subordinated liabilities as a separate line item
in the balance sheet. Interest cost, if any on account of dividend on these preference shares has been reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss under (he head Finance cosl.

Impact of Expected Credit Loss Allowance

Under previous GAAFP, losses and provisions on trade receivables were computed based on credit risk assessment where the
management used to create provision for doubtiul debts on unsecured receivables for more than 180 days. Under Ind AS, the same is
required to be compuled as per the impairment principles laid out in Ind AS 109 - 'Financial Instraments' which prescribes the expected
credit loss madel (ECL model) for the same. Accordingly, the difference between losses and provisions as computed under previous
GAAF and as compuled under Ind AS is adjusted in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the Statement of

Profil and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022,
Impact of accounting under Ind AS 116 'Leases’

Under previous GAAP, for the purpose of operating leases, the lease rentals were charges to the profil & loss account as and when they
were due. Under Ind A5, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and correponding lease liabilities on such operating lease
arrangements. Depreciation is charged on such right-of-use assets on straight line method and interest cost is charged on incremental
borrowing rate on the lease liability and both these cost are charged to the profit & loss account. Accordingly, the group has recognized
Right of Use assels as at April 1, 2021 for leases previously classified as operaling leases and created a correponding lease liability.
Subsequently, the lease rentals charged in the profit & loss account under previous GAAP are reversed and depreciation on right of use

assets and finance cost on lease liability are charged in the Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022,
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(All amounts in Rs, Lakhs, unless othervise stated)

7) Impact of EIR on staff loans

As per the group policy, the group grants ils employee loans at an concessional rate which is lower than the market rate. Under
previous GAAF, interest income from such loans at the concessional rate was charged to the profit and loss account, Under Ind AS,
these loans meet the criteria to be classified as financial instrument under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”. These loans are valued at
atmortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) which is the prevailing market rate for similar loans. As on the transilion date, the
loans oulstanding are discounted using the EIR and valued at amortised cost. Subsequently, interest income is calculated using the EIR
method and charged to profit and loss account and corresponding expense on discounting of such loans is charged to profit and loss

account under Finance Cost for the year ended March 31, 2022,
8) Impact of EIR on security deposits

Under Ind AS, the security deposit given by the group are discounted at the effective interest rate (EIR) as on the transition date.
Subsequently, interest income and prepaid expense is charged to the profit & loss account for the year ended March 31, 2022,

9) Investment Property
Under the previous GAAP, investment propertics were presented as part of non-current investmonts. Under Ind AS, investment
properties are required to be separately presented on the face of the balance sheet. There is no impact on the total equity or profit as a
result of this adjustment.

10) Other comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a
standard requires or permils otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the
statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income” includes fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments, The

concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

11) Deferred tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the profit and loss approach, which focuses on differences belween taxable profits
and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred laxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or lability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The
application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required
under Indian GAAP.
In addition, the various lransitional adjustments have lead lo temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in

correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

64  Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to confirm with this year's classification.
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